

CONSTITUTION OF THE KOUGA SPORTS COUNCIL

Version 4 - as unanimously adopted at the KSC General Council in the Humansdorp Country Club on 3rd October 2015

CONSTITUTION OF THE KOUGA SPORTS COUNCIL

Summary of key provisions

PREAMBLE

NAME, CONSTITUTION AND LEGAL PERSONALITY

DEFINITIONS

JURISDICTION

INDEMNITY

LANGUAGE OF COMMUNICATION

OBJECTIVES

POWERS

MEMBERSHIP

AUTONOMY OF MEMBERS

VOTING MEMBERS

VOTING PROCEDURES

GENERAL COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (EXCO)

TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

VACANCIES IN THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

FEES

FINANCE

AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION

DISSOLUTION

Summary of key provisions

- **Objective:** To encourage participation in sport by all persons resident in Kouga.
- **Membership:** Individuals, clubs, areas, sports codes, schools, affiliates, disabled sports.
- **Voting members:** reps for areas, sports codes, schools, affiliates, disabled sports.
- **General council meetings:** 4 per year, main decision making body
- **AGM:** annually in March, elects new exco, max 3 terms per exco member, 2 must stand down annually
- **EXCO:** 9 members, meets monthly, runs the KSC
- **Fees:** currently none. Funding received from KM
- **Financial year:** 1 March to 28 Feb

1. PREAMBLE

- 1.1. The goal of the Kouga Sports Council is to represent the interests of all sports players in the Kouga region and to encourage the development of sport at all levels within the Kouga region.

- 1.2. We will achieve this goal by providing a competent organisational infrastructure for all sports, by acting as the interface between sport and the various levels of government and business, by promoting and supporting clubs, schools, sports competitions, and leagues, by identifying and developing the best talent available in the region, and by arranging the funding necessary for these activities.
- 1.3. The Kouga Sports Council undertakes to abide by the constitution of South Africa, and the provisions of the Olympic Charter, and to actively promote ethical behaviour in sport within our region.

2. NAME, CONSTITUTION AND LEGAL PERSONALITY

- 2.1. The name of the organisation to which this constitution refers shall be the Kouga Sports Council hereinafter referred to and known by the acronym KSC.
- 2.2. The KSC is a Voluntary Association having corporate identity separate from that of its members which is entitled to own property, whether moveable or immovable or otherwise, and to sue and be sued in its own name and notwithstanding any change in the composition of its membership from time to time shall have perpetual succession.
- 2.3. All immovable property or other rights in immovable property, which might be obtained by the KSC from time to time, shall be registered in the name of the KSC.
- 2.4. The Kouga sport council is a non profit organization.

3. DEFINITIONS

- 3.1. “Days” When any particular number of days is prescribed for the doing of any act, the same shall be reckoned exclusively of the first and inclusively of the last day, unless the last day happens to fall on a Sunday or on any public holiday.
- 3.2. “Notice”, unless the context indicates otherwise, shall mean a communication sent to an address as notified by the addressee and recorded in the records of the KSC, being
 - 3.2.1. a written communication sent to the addressee by ordinary or registered post,
 - 3.2.2. or a telefaxed transmission to the fax number provided
 - 3.2.3. or an e-mail, to the e-mail address provided.
- 3.3. Any notice sent by post shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee within 5 (five) days of the proven date of posting. Any notice sent by telefaxed transmission shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee on the day after the proven date of telefax transmission. Any e-mailed notice shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee on the day after the proven date of the e-mail transmission.
- 3.4. “South Africa” Means “the Republic of South Africa” as defined in the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, Act 108 of 1996, as amended.
- 3.5. In this constitution, unless inconsistent with the context, words implying the singular include the plural and vice versa, the male gender includes the female gender, and persons shall include bodies corporate.
- 3.6. “Annual General Meeting (AGM)” means the meeting of all members held annually in March of each year, at which a new executive committee is elected. It is the highest decision making body of the KSC. Eligibility to vote at this meeting is defined in the body of this constitution.
- 3.7. “General Council Meeting” means the meeting of all members held quarterly, to provide guidance from the members to the executive committee and to review progress.

- 3.8. "Executive committee (EXCO)" means the Executive Committee of the Kouga Sports Council as elected at the AGM and constituted from time to time in terms of this constitution.
- 3.9. "The Sarah Baartmann District Sports Committee (SBDSC)" is a statutory body responsible for the administration of sporting matters within the Sarah Baartmann (formerly Cacadu) District of the Eastern Cape. The KSC is a member of the SBDSC.
- 3.10. "The Eastern Cape Sports Council (ECSC)" is a statutory body responsible for the administration of sporting matters within the Eastern Cape province. The KSC and the SBDSC is a member of the ECSC.
- 3.11. "Provincial Federation" means a sports organization recognized as such and affiliated to a National Sports Federation, and organizing and managing a sports code in the province;
- 3.12. "Member in good standing" Any individual member, club, school, affiliate, organization/federation that is demarcated -- accordingly as per the sub-region demarcations; holding meetings as per the - constitutional requirements; and has paid all its dues

4. JURISDICTION

- 4.1. The areas of jurisdiction within which funds will be raised and services rendered, shall be the area of Kouga governed by the Kouga Municipality as defined in the Local Government: Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act 27 of 1998) as amended from time to time and subject to additions resulting from negotiations with neighbouring Sports Councils.

5. INDEMNITY

- 5.1. Every office bearer, official or employee of the KSC shall be indemnified by the KSC and the Kouga Municipality against all or any cost, losses and expenses which he or she may incur or become liable for by virtue of any reason or any act or omission in the discharge of his or her duties, unless the loss in question is caused by his or her own gross negligence, dishonesty or bad faith.
- 5.2. Office bearers, officials and employees of the KSC shall be indemnified by the KSC and the Kouga Municipality against pecuniary loss sustained by reason of legal proceedings, arising out of whatever cause, instituted against the KSC or against such officer bearer, official or employee in his or her representative capacity, provided that the indemnity conveyed herein shall not extend to private personal acts of such office bearers, official or employees outside the cause and scope of their employment (in the case of employees) and acts outside the official appointment and office in the KSC (in the case of office bearers and officials).

6. LANGUAGE OF COMMUNICATION

Whilst recognizing all the official languages as stipulated in the constitution of the Republic of South Africa, English shall be used as a preferred medium of communication

7. OBJECTIVES

The following are the objectives of the KSC:

- 7.1. To encourage participation in sport by all persons resident in Kouga.
- 7.2. To encourage the development of sport at all levels in Kouga.
- 7.3. To improve the access to funding, expertise and facilities for all sports codes and regions in Kouga.
- 7.4. To represent the interests of all sports federations and Area sports councils in the Kouga in negotiating with key stakeholders with regards to sports policy matters.
- 7.5. To create opportunities for sports federations, Area sports councils, Affiliate organisations, clubs and individual players to network and share information, experiences and expertise with each other.
- 7.6. To bring Kouga sports codes into line with provincial, national and international standards.
- 7.7. To provide support in the field of education and training for federations, Area sports councils, clubs and individual players.
- 7.8. To promote the development and maintenance of sporting facilities for all the peoples in Kouga, with special concern for people in rural areas, historically disadvantaged people and people living with a disability.
- 7.9. To encourage, organise and promote the development of high performance sport as well as sport for all;
- 7.10. To cooperate, liaise and work with the provincial Ministry of Sport and Recreation, with any other provincial Ministries or departments, local levels of Government and any other organisation established to promote sport in the region;
- 7.11. To ensure that appropriate standards of discipline are maintained by sports federations, Area sports councils, clubs and individual players within Kouga.
- 7.12. To apply for membership of SBDSC and ECSC, and other appropriate sports entities as constituted from time to time.
- 7.13. Initiate partnerships with the private and public sector entities regarding resources needed to support sporting programmes.
- 7.14. foster cooperation and build partnerships amongst all sectors of society that are committed to sports development within Kouga;

8. POWERS

- 8.1. The KSC shall have all such powers as may be necessary or reasonably required in law for the due and proper attainment of the KSC's objectives and for the proper and efficient functioning and administration of the KSC. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the KSC shall have all the following powers:
- 8.2. To purchase or acquire in any way land, buildings, agencies, shares, debentures and every other kind or description of movable and immovable property;
- 8.3. To manage, insure, sell, lease, mortgage, dispose of, give in exchange, work, develop, build on, improve, turn to account or in any way otherwise deal with all or any part of its property and assets;
- 8.4. To invest funds not immediately required in the name of the KSC with registered financial institutions as defined in section 2 of the Financial Institutions (Investment of Funds) Act, 1984.
- 8.5. To accept donations and legacies and raise funds on behalf of the KSC subject to the express limitation that should the services of a fund raiser be used for collection of contributions, the expenses (remunerations and/or commission included) may not exceed 20% (twenty per centum) of the total proceeds of the collection;
- 8.6. To open and operate banking accounts.
- 8.7. To make donations to its members where applicable;

- 8.8. To undertake and execute any trust and participate in any trust;
- 8.9. To employ persons;
- 8.10. To act as principals, agents or contractors;
- 8.11. To make, vary and repeal by-laws, standing orders or rules for the due and proper regulation of the affairs of the KSC, and the due and proper functioning of its employees, agents and officials;
- 8.12. To initiate, institute or defend legal proceedings, arbitrations, mediation and/or any other form of appropriate dispute resolution procedures.

9. MEMBERSHIP

The members of the KSC shall comprise:

9.1. Individuals

- 9.1.1. Required to submit a completed KSC Individual registration form

9.2. Clubs

To be ratified by the General Council, each club is required to:

- 9.2.1. submit a completed KSC Club/School registration form
- 9.2.2. submit a list of current Club committee members
- 9.2.3. submit a list of at least 10 currently registered individual KSC members who are members of the club
- 9.2.4. submit a copy of the Club Constitution
- 9.2.5. submit proof of payment of the application fee, if required

9.3. Area Sports Councils

To be ratified by the General Council, each Area sports council is required to

- 9.3.1. submit a completed KSC Area Sports Council registration form
- 9.3.2. submit a list of current Area Sports Council committee members
- 9.3.3. submit a list of at least 10 registered individual KSC members who are resident in the region
- 9.3.4. submit a copy of the Area Sports Council Constitution
- 9.3.5. submit proof of payment of the application fee, if required
- 9.3.6. The Kouga Regions for the purposes of the KSC are defined below:
 - 9.3.6.1. **Patensie** (Patensie, Cambria, Andrieskraal, Ramaphosa)
 - 9.3.6.2. **Hankey** (Hankey, Weston, Centerton, Phillipsville)
 - 9.3.6.3. **Humansdorp** (Humansdorp, Vergenoeg, KwaNomzamo, Gill Marcus, 7de Laan, Kruisfontein)
 - 9.3.6.4. **St Francis** (Sea Vista, St Francis, Port St Francis, Cape St Francis)
 - 9.3.6.5. **Oyster Bay** (Oyster Bay)
 - 9.3.6.6. **Loerie** (Loerie, Thornhill, Gamtoos, Van Stadens)
 - 9.3.6.7. **Jeffreys Bay** (Kabeljous, Wavecrest, Central, C Place, Pellsrus, Ocean View, Tokyo Sexwale, Mandela Bay, Aston Bay, Paradise Beach, Marina Martinique)

9.4. Sports Code Federations

To be ratified by the General Council, each Sports Code Federation is required to

- 9.4.1. submit a completed KSC Sports Code Federation registration form
- 9.4.2. submit a list of current Sports Code Federation committee members
- 9.4.3. submit the list of clubs which constitutes the Sports Code Federation
- 9.4.4. submit a copy of the Sports Code Federation Constitution
- 9.4.5. submit proof of payment of the application fee, if required

9.5. Affiliate Organisations

Where an existing, well-organised and widely recognised structure already exists for

- a sport, then that structure may join the KSC as an Affiliate Organisation. To be ratified by the General Council, each Affiliate Organisation is required to
- 9.5.1. submit a completed KSC Affiliate Organisation registration form
 - 9.5.2. submit a list of current Affiliate Organisation committee members
 - 9.5.3. submit the list of clubs which constitutes the Affiliate Organisation
 - 9.5.4. submit a copy of the Affiliate Organisation Constitution
 - 9.5.5. submit proof of payment of the application fee, if required
- 9.6. School Representatives
To be ratified by the General Council, each school is required to
- 9.6.1. submit a completed KSC Club/School registration form
 - 9.6.2. submit a list of at least 10 registered individual KSC members who are students at the school
 - 9.6.3. submit proof of payment of the application fee, if required
- 9.7. Disabled Sports Representatives
To be ratified by the General Council, Representatives of Disabled Sports are required to
- 9.7.1. submit a completed KSC representative registration form
 - 9.7.2. submit a list of at least 10 registered individual KSC members who are affiliated with disabled sports in Kouga
 - 9.7.3. submit proof of payment of the application fee, if required
- 9.8. Application for membership shall be submitted to the General Secretary for verification prior to submission to the EXCO for approval.
- 9.9. A database of members shall be maintained at the registered office of the KSC. It is the responsibility of all members to inform the KSC in writing and to provide proof of such notification of any changes in the contact details of the respective members.

10. AUTONOMY OF MEMBERS

- 10.1. Whilst accepting that membership of the KSC entails the primary obligation to attain the objectives thereof, membership of the KSC shall not in any way curtail the rights, powers or duties of any member to comply with its obligations to the national controlling body of its code of sport or to enforce and administer that code of sport as prescribed by that national controlling body, or in the running and administration of the member's leagues, championships or tournaments.

11. VOTING MEMBERS

- 11.1. Each voting member is entitled to select a main and an alternate representative, only one of whom may vote at any annual, special or general meeting. In the event that the main representative is unavailable for any reason, then the alternative representative may vote instead.
The voting members are as follows:
- 11.1.1. each ratified Area Sports Council
 - 11.1.2. each ratified Sports Code Federation
 - 11.1.3. each ratified Affiliate Organisation
 - 11.1.4. each ratified School
 - 11.1.5. one ratified disabled sports representative
- 11.2. Where a member of Exco is also a voting member representative, that Exco member may exercise all the rights due to that voting member representative.

12. VOTING PROCEDURES

- 12.1. Notice of the date, time and place for the holding of any meeting of the KSC shall be given in writing to all ratified members at their registered address as appearing in the records of the KSC within the limits as provided for herein.
- 12.2. Voting in all meetings, other than elections, shall be by a show of hands. The Chairperson may allow a secret ballot should the circumstances warrant this.
- 12.3. Voting for the election of office bearers in the KSC shall be conducted by secret ballot.
- 12.4. A simple majority of votes shall be sufficient and legally valid to elect or declare the nomination of any individual member to office;
- 12.5. A declaration by the Chairperson of the meeting or electoral officer (in the case of elections) of the results of the show of hands or secret ballots, shall be conclusive.

13. GENERAL COUNCIL

- 13.1. The following persons are entitled and expected to attend all General Council meetings:
 - 13.1.1. The members of the Executive Committee of the KSC.
 - 13.1.2. Two duly elected representatives from each ratified Area Sports Council
 - 13.1.3. Two duly elected representatives from each ratified Sports Code Federation
 - 13.1.4. Two nominated representatives from each ratified Affiliate Organisation
 - 13.1.5. Two nominated representatives from each ratified School
 - 13.1.6. Two duly elected representatives of Disabled Sports
 - 13.1.7. Two nominated representatives of the Kouga Municipality
 - 13.1.8. Two nominated representatives of the Cacadu District Municipality
 - 13.1.9. Two nominated representatives of the Department of Sports, Recreation, Arts and Culture
- 13.2. All the above persons shall have the right to speak, propose or second motions, and participate in the discussions at the General Council meetings. Persons attending by electronic means such as Zoom or Google Meet shall be recognised as if present in person.
- 13.3. Only voting members (as specified above in clause 11.1) may exercise their vote at General Council meetings.
- 13.4. Individual members and club officials may attend general council meetings but do not have the right to speak or vote. Their area, school, affiliate or sports code representatives are expected to speak on their behalf.
- 13.5. Members of the public may attend general council meetings but do not have the right to speak or vote.
- 13.6. the General Council shall meet at least four times per year, preferably once per quarter.
- 13.7. the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the General Council shall be held no later than the end of March of each year, immediately after the financial year-end.
- 13.8. The election of the EXCO shall take place at the AGM of the KSC, by no later than the end of March in that year.
- 13.9. No member of the EXCO may serve for more than 3 consecutive terms.

- 13.10. At least 2 members of the EXCO are required to stand down prior to each new term, as decided by a vote of the EXCO.
- 13.11. An audited financial statement shall be presented by the Treasurer immediately after the financial year-end.
- 13.12. General Meetings of the KSC shall be convened by the chairperson on at least 15 (fifteen) days written notice to each ratified member entitled to be present thereat;
- 13.13. The quorum at a General Meeting shall be 50% (fifty per centum) plus 1 (one) of those voting members entitled to be present at such meeting;
- 13.14. In the event of a lack of a quorum after 30 (thirty) minutes of the scheduled starting time of such meeting, the chairperson of the said meeting shall adjourn the meeting for a period not exceeding 14 (fourteen) days. At the adjourned meeting, the voting members present shall constitute a quorum; decisions taken at such a meeting shall be binding.
- 13.15. Upon the written request of at least 40% (forty per cent) of the ratified members of the KSC entitled to attend a General Meeting, the Chairperson shall convene a Special General Meeting, within a period of 15 (fifteen) days of receipt of such request, for the purpose of considering the business contained in such request;
- 13.16. The President may, with the approval of the EXCO, convene a Special General Meeting to transact such business as he or she, in his or her discretion, deems necessary and expedient;
- 13.17. Special General Meetings are subject to the same provisions and regulations as General Meetings.
- 13.18. The General Council shall be the highest authority of the KSC and shall have powers:
 - 13.18.1. to decide upon the policies to be followed to achieve and carry out the objectives of the KSC as set forth in the constitution and in the by-laws, rules or regulations of the KSC;
 - 13.18.2. to elect the office bearers of the KSC annually and to remove the same on just cause shown;
 - 13.18.3. to ratify, amend and/or repeal any and all decisions of the EXCO and its structures;
 - 13.18.4. to amend and/or repeal provisions of this constitution and the by-laws;
 - 13.18.5. to establish the criteria for membership and to admit new members and terminate the membership of existing members on just cause shown;
 - 13.18.6. To amend, on good cause shown, any time limits prescribed by this constitution provided that no time limit relating to an amendment of this constitution may be waived except with the consent of voting members of the KSC.

14. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (EXCO)

- 14.1. The Exco shall consist of:
 - 14.1.1. The President;
 - 14.1.2. The Vice President;

- 14.1.3. The General Secretary;
- 14.1.4. The Treasurer;
- 14.1.5. The Membership Registration Officer
- 14.1.6. The Members Liaison Officer (deals with federations/regions/schools/disabled)
- 14.1.7. The Officials Liaison Officer (deals with DSRAC/KM/CDSC/USSASA)
- 14.1.8. The Marketing/Press Officer
- 14.1.9. The Development officer
- 14.2. The Exco may from time to time appoint further additional members to the Exco to perform specific functions. The subsequent General Council must ratify such appointments.
- 14.3. The quorum for meetings of the Exco shall be 50% plus 1 (one) of its current members.
- 14.4. Any EXCO member who misses 3 consecutive EXCO meetings with or without apology shall automatically forfeit their position on the EXCO.
- 14.5. Any EXCO member who misses 5 or more EXCO meetings in a single year with or without apology shall automatically forfeit their position on the EXCO.
- 14.6. Subject to the provisions of this constitution and to any decision of the General Council, the EXCO shall have the authority to do anything or take any steps, which might be done by the KSC in the furtherance of its objectives and the policies decided upon by the General Council. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, this shall include the following:
 - 14.6.1. to attend to all legal matters on behalf of the KSC;
 - 14.6.2. to host, when applicable, any events in conjunction with the appropriate structures and organisations concerned;
 - 14.6.3. to participate in the provincial Sports and Recreation Forum, the provincial Sports Trust and any other appropriate structures;
 - 14.6.4. to appoint such number of standing committees with such powers, from time to time, as may be necessary;
 - 14.6.5. generally to execute any legal act on behalf of the KSC, thus doing all that is necessary for the fulfilment of the objectives if the KSC, provided that such act is not contrary to the constitution or any instruction of the General Council.
- 14.7. The Executive Committee shall be the implementation and execution arm of the KSC and shall be charged with overall responsibility for the management of the affairs of the KSC.
- 14.8. No member of the Exco who has any direct or indirect interest in or who would benefit from any contract to be entered into between the KSC and a third party, shall be present at the meeting at which such contract is considered, debated and decided.

- 14.9. The EXCO shall meet at least once every 8 (eight) weeks and whenever else as may be necessary upon proper notice being given of such meeting, being not less than 7 (seven) days, to all members entitled to be present thereat.
- 14.10. A simple majority shall be sufficient to carry any decision of the EXCO.
- 14.11. Any ratified member of the General Council may nominate any eligible person for office in the EXCO.
- 14.12. Only individual KSC members shall be eligible for election to the EXCO.
- 14.13. Nominations for the election shall be submitted in writing to the General Secretary at least 30 (thirty) days prior to the election. A nomination form, to be valid, should contain;
 - 14.13.1. The full name of the candidate;
 - 14.13.2. The position for which he or she is nominated;
 - 14.13.3. The name of the proposer together with a brief background of the nominee;
 - 14.13.4. The signature of the person signifying his or her acceptance of the nomination;
 - 14.13.5. All nominations not in compliance with the provisions of this section shall be deemed to be invalid.
- 14.14. All nominations for election shall be sent to all ratified members of the General Council by the General Secretary, to be received by them at least 10 (ten) days prior to the date of election.

15. TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

- 15.1. The General Council may terminate the membership of any member on one or more of the following grounds:
 - 15.1.1. Non-payment of subscriptions; and/or
 - 15.1.2. Non-compliance with any binding decisions of the General Council
 - 15.1.3. Infringement of the constitution and by-laws, rules or standing orders,
- 15.2. No motion to terminate the membership of any member shall be considered unless the member concerned has been given 30 (thirty) days notice, which notice shall state the reasons clearly and such member shall be given a reasonable opportunity to address the meeting at which such motion is to be considered.

16. VACANCIES IN THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

- 16.1. In the event of any vacancy occurring in the EXCO, the vacancy shall be filled by the EXCO and ratified at a subsequent meeting of the General Council for the remainder of the term of office of the EXCO.
- 16.2. In the event of the said appointment not being ratified by the General Council, the member of the EXCO shall be immediately relieved of his or her post.
- 16.3. Any decisions taken by the EXCO in good faith during the term of office of an EXCO member not ratified by General Council shall nevertheless stand.

17. FEES

- 17.1. The General Council shall, from time to time, determine the membership fees payable by members and such other fees and levies necessary for the due and effective functioning of the KSC and for the furtherance of its aims and objectives.

18. FINANCE

- 18.1. The activities of KSC shall be conducted on a non-profit basis with the intent and purpose that its capital and income from whatever source shall be applied solely towards the promotion of its objectives, provided that nothing herein contained shall preclude the payment in good faith to an affiliate or any other person of:
 - 18.1.1. reasonable agreed remuneration for services actually rendered on behalf of the KSC;
 - 18.1.2. reimbursement of actual costs, expenses or other commitments incurred on behalf of the KSC;
 - 18.1.3. payment of such monies to affiliates and members as found advisable by the EXCO for the advancement of sport in Kouga;
- 18.2. The EXCO shall open and operate a bank account with a registered banking institution in the Republic of South Africa.
- 18.3. The signatories to the said bank account shall be the president, vice-president, Treasurer and General Secretary and the signatures of any 2 (two) shall be valid and binding on any negotiable instrument issued by the KSC.
- 18.4. The financial year of the KSC shall commence on the first day of March and end on the last day of February in each calendar year.
- 18.5. Annual subscriptions and other membership fees shall be payable by no later than the end of September in each year.
- 18.6. The Treasurer shall be responsible for keeping proper books of account, which shall record all monies received by the KSC and payments made on behalf of the KSC, and such books shall be reconciled regularly with the banking account of the KSC.
- 18.7. The treasurer shall submit income and expenditure statements at all general meetings and EXCO meetings of the KSC.

19. AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION

- 19.1. This constitution may be amended, rescinded or altered at any General Meeting, Annual General Meeting or Special General Meeting of the KSC provided that:
 - 19.1.1. notice has been given to the General Secretary in writing and that the meeting shall be called within 30 (thirty) days of receipt of such notice;
 - 19.1.2. such notice contains the nature and grounds of the amendment;
 - 19.1.3. a copy of such notice has been forwarded to each voting member, by the General Secretary, at least 15 (fifteen) days before the date of the meeting;
 - 19.1.4. the said amendment is passed by a majority of two thirds at the said meeting;
 - 19.1.5. In the event of any disputes over the meaning of any word, phrase or section of the constitution, the interpretation of the EXCO shall be final and binding.

20. DISSOLUTION

- 20.1. The KSC may be dissolved if at least two thirds of the members present and voting at a General Meeting of members, convened for the purpose of considering such matter, are in favour of dissolution.
- 20.2. Not less than 90 (ninety) days notice shall be given of such meeting and the notice convening the meeting shall clearly state that the question of dissolution of the KSC and disposal of its assets, will be considered.
- 20.3. If there is no quorum at such a general meeting, the meeting shall stand adjourned for not less than 3 (three) weeks and the members attending such adjourned meeting shall constitute a quorum.
- 20.4. If upon dissolution of the KSC there remain any assets whatsoever after the satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities, such assets shall not be paid to or distributed among members of the KSC, but shall be given to such other organisation(s) preferably having similar objectives and which is/are authorised in terms of the Fund Raising Act, 1978, to collect contributions, as may be decided either by the members at the General Meeting at which it was decided to dissolve the KSC or, in default of such decision, as may be decided by the Director of Fundraising.